FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201 7

2  Judgements and key sources of estimaticn uncertainty

other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on &n ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future

periods,
3 Turnover and other revenue

An analysis of the group's tumover is as follows:

2017
£

Turnover
Property rental 511,452
Tolls 3,056,480
Hotel - services 3,663,139
Hotel - goods 2,311,242

2016
£

497,007
3,057,547
3,391,087
2,048,686

9,642,313

4  Operating profit

8,994,307

2017 2016
£ £
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 529,524 653,138
(Profit)/oss on disposal of tangible fixed asssts - 4,787
Amortisation of intangihle assets : 105,183 100,000
Cost of stocks recognised as an expense 1,368,792 1,166,604
The amortisation of intangible assets Is included within administration expenses.
6  Auditore' remuneration
2017 2016
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates: £ £
For audlt services
Audit of the financial statements of the group and company 13,750 14,500
Audit of the company's subsidiarles 28,800 31,475
43,550 45,975

-y
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

6 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group and company during
the year wag:

2017 2016
Number Number
Operations 209 191
Administration 40 26
. 249 217

Their aggregate remuneration camprised:
2017 2016
£ £
Wages and salaries 3,482,188 3,301,533
Social security costs 205,883 190,911
Pension costs 81,247 56,933
3,749,008 3,549,377

7 Interest receivable and simliar income
2017 2016
£ £

Interest income

interest on bank deposits 31,420 30413
Other interest income 7 451
Total income 31,427 30,884

investment income includes the following:
Interest on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or ioss 31,420 30,413

8 Directors' remuneration

' 2017 2016
£ £
Remuneration for qualifying services 257,100 309,705

Remuneration disclosed above includes the followlng amounts paid to the highest paid director:

Remuneration for qualifying eervices 150,000 150,000




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10

Interest payable and similar expenses

Interest on financial llabliitles measured at amortised cost:
Interast on bank overdrafts and loans

Other finance costs:

Other interest

Total finance costs
Taxation

Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Tex losses carried forward

Other adjustments

Total deferred tax

Total tax charge

2017 2016

£ £
278,857 264,176
208 -
279,065 264,176
2017 2016

3 £
289,731 313,973
(71.965)  (222,570)
217,768 91,403
(53,600) 565,600
47,600 (47,600)
(4,000) 45,000
(10,000) 583,000
207,766 654,403
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

e e

10 Taxation

11

{Continued)

The actual charge for the year can be reconclled to the expectsd charge based on the profit or loss and
the standard rate of tax as follows:

2017 2016
£ £

1,252,044 1,617,904

Profit before taxation

Expected tayx charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 20.60% (2016: 20.00%) 250,409 323,581

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 18,589 17,091
Galns not taxable {5,000) (105,335)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses {16,778) -
Unutilised tax losses carried forward - 62,507
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 26,582 8,197
Adjustments in respect of prior years (71,965) (222,570)
Permanent capital allowances in excess of depreciation (16,936) (49,335)
Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax allowances 32,885 59,008
(2,741)

FRS102 transitionaj adjustments

{10,000) 563,000

Deferred tax movement
Tax expense for the year 207,766 654,403

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account, the following amounts relating to tax have
been recognised directly in other comprehensive income:

2017 2016
£ £

Deferred tax arising on:
Revaluation of property (148,516 {118,000

Dividends

2017 2016
£ £
18,200 -

Interim paid




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARE

12

Intangible fixed assets

Group

Cost

At 1 April 2018

Additions - separately acquired
At 31 March 2017

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Aprii 2016

Amortisation charged for the year
Al 31 March 2017

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2018

NDED 31 MARCH 2017

Goodwli! Other Total
Intangibles
3 £ £
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
- 10,385 10,365
1,000,000 10,385 1,010,365
530411 - 530,411
100,000 5,183 105,183
630,411 5,183 635,594
369,589 5,182 374,771
489,589 - 489,589




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

13 Tangible fixed assets
Group Frechoid land  Motor ferry Flxtures, Plant, Total
and bulldings fittinga andmachinery and
squipmentmotor vehliclas
£ £ £ £ £
Cost or valuation
At 1 Aprif 2018 28,866,504 1 800,000 1,845,991 200297 32,812,792
Additions 203,373 - 47,159 - 250,532
At 31 March 2017 29,068,877 1,900,000 1,893,150 200,297 33,063,324
Depreciation and impalrment
At 1 April 2018 813,771 542,858 804,749 159,260 2,120,838
Depreciation charged in the yaar 188,545 135,714 181,216 24,049 520,524
Al 31 March 2017 1,002,318 878,572 785965 183,309 2,650,162
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017 28,067,561 1,221,428 1,107,185 16,988 30,413,162
At 31 March 2016 28,052,733 1,357,142 1,241,242 41,037 30,692,154
Analysis of cast or valuation at 31
March 2017
Valuation 11,985,937 1 800,000 - - 13,885,937
Cost 17,083,940 - 1,883,150 200,297 19,177,387
29,069,877 1,900,000 1,893,150 200,297 33,083,324
Company Fixtures, fittings and equipment
£
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2017 14,226
Depreciation and Iimpairment
At 1 April 2016 13,408
Depreciation charged in the year 408
At 31 March 2017 13,816
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017 410
At 31 March 2018 g18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

—_——— -

13  Tangible fixed assets {Continued)

Land and buildings held within the subsidiary Company operating the motor ferry, were revalued at the date
of transition to FRS102 by professional valuers not connected with the company at £12,370,000. In
it tor ferry was valued gt £1,800,000. This total valuation has then been "frozen" under the

fransitional arrangements included within FRS102,

On a historieat cost basls the freenoid land and bulidings revalued would be included at a cost of £51 0.466
and book value at 31 March 2017 of £325,941. The motor ferry would be included at a cost of £2,123,690

and a £nil net book value at 31 March 201 7.

Included within land and buildings is a wo and a half mile strip of land which i8 occupied for the ferry road
and is held |n perpetulty under the terms of The Bournemou!h—Swanage Motor Road and Ferry Act 1923,

if revalued assets were stated on an historical cost basis rather than a fair value basis, the tota) amounts
included would have been as foliows:

Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Cost 2,789,751 2,673,703 - -
Accumulated depreciation based on historic
cost 2,460,927 2,338,850 - -
Carrying value 328,824 334,853 - -

———___-———___———___
——-___——--__———-\__

14  Investment property
Group Company
2017 2017
£ £
Fair value
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 10,313,000 -
Net gains or losses through fair vaiye adjustments 25,000 -
At 31 March 2017 10,338,000 -
Investment roperty comprises both residential and commmercial investment Property. The fair value of the
residential investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a professional valuation obtained by the
directors as at 31 March 2017. The valuation was made on a fair value basig by reference to markst
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
At 31 March 2017 obtained a professiona| valuation of the commercial properiies. This valuation showed &
vaive of £8,660,000 The canrying value of this property is £8,713,000. The directors consider the
reduction in value to be temporary and have not accounted for it in these financiaj statements
If investment properties were stated on historic cost basis rather than a fair value basis, the cost would
be stated as £3,607,734 (20186; £3,507,734).
—_— s
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
B R e

16  Fixed asset investments

Group . Company
2017 2018 2017 2016
Notes £ £ £
Investments in subsidiarigs 31 - - 518,740 518,740
Movements in fixed aaset Investmants
Company Shares In
group
undertakings
£
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 518,740
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017 518,740
At 31 March 2018 518,740
16  Financial instruments
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Carrying amount of financial agsets
Debt instruments measured at amartised cost 168,535 233,358 14,091,231 14,104,867
Carrying amount of financlal liabilities
Measured gt amartised cost 15,243,458 15,71 3,507 20,887 17,220
_— —_—
17 Debtors
Group Company
2017 2046 2017 2016
Amounts falling due within one year: £ £ £ £
Trade debtors 181,621 226,999 - -
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 14,091,231 14,104,867
Other debtors 8914 6,358 - -
‘Prepayments and accrued income 359,351 351,302 - -
527,868 584,660 14,091 231 14,104,857
e — -
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

18 Stocks
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Raw materials and consumables 220,129 259,948 - -
Finished goods and goods for resale 160,690 139,976 - -

370,818 399,922

19  Creditors: amounts failing due within one year

Group Company
2017 2018 2017 2016
Notes £ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 21 6,146,348 6,692,457 - -
Trade creditors 390,862 490,998 3,082 470
Corporation tax payable 149,723 313,521 - -
Other taxation and sociaf security 208,490 229,377 34,680 28,345
Other creditors (1.291,825) (1 418,665) 55 -
Accruals and deferred income 298,073 248,717 17,750 16,750
5,899,671 6,556,405 65,567 45,565

20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2017 2018 2017 2018
Notes £ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 21 8,000,000 8,000,000 - -
Other creditors 1,700,000 1,700,000 - -

8,700,000 8,700,000

The bank loan is secured by a first priority legal charge over the property of the borro

wing subsidiary

company, Silvermist Properties {Chelmsford) Limited which has a carrying value of £8,713,000, and over

all other group assets Including a guarantes from the guarantor (Fairacres Group Limited)
sum of £8,000,000 together with interest and costs,

for the principal

Directors’ loans totalling £1,700,000 are secured by a fixed charge over one of the properties held in fixed

assets.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

e ——

21  Loansand overdrafte

Group

2017

£

Bank loans 8,000,000
Bank overdrafts 4,446,348
Directors’ loan accounts 1,700,000
14,148,348

Payable within one year 4,446,348
Payable after one year 9,700,000

22 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax agsets and liabilities are offset where the group or
do so. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balanc

purposes;

Group
Accelerated capital allowances
Tax losses

Revaluations
Investment property

The company has no deferred tax assets or liabilities,

Movements In the year:
Liability at 1 April 2016

Credit to profit or ioss

Credit to other comprehensive income

Liability at 31 March 2017

Compeany
2016 2017 2016
£ £ ' £
8,000,000 - -
4,852 457 - -
1,700,000 - -
14,692,457 - -
4,992,457 - -
9,700,000 - -
company has a legally enforceabls right to
es (after offsel) for financiaj reporting
Liabilities Llabiiities
2017 2016
£ £
531,000 584,600
- (47,600)
859,484 808,000
41,000 45,000
1,231,484 1,388,000
Group Company
2017 2017
£ £
1,388,000 -
(10,000)
(146,516) -
1,231,484 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

23 Retirement benefit schemes

2017
Defined contribution schemes £
Charge to profit and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 681,247

24 Share capital

Group and company

2017 2016

Ordinary share capital £ £
Issued and fully paid

3,480 Ordinary of 50p each 1,745 1,745

700 A Ordinary of 50p each 350 350

2,095 2,095

e -
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

25 Reserves

Other reserves
These arise on the historic revaluation of fixed assets by subsidiary companies and are not distributable,

Equity reserve
Profit and loss reserve

included within the profit and loss reserve is £555,676 of fair value gains on investment properties, less
£45,000 of associated defarred tax, This total of £510,876 is not distributable to the members.

Motor ferry replacement reserve

In June 2008, the company obtained a professional estimate of the cost of building a diesel electric
powered motor ferry to replace the company's existing vessel, the approximate cost was £6,179,500. If ful
provision for renewal had been made, based on this figure with an assumed inflation of 3% per annum, the
Motor Ferry Replacement Reserve at the balance sheet date would have totalled £7,297,008 (2016:

£6,947,389) based on a period of 33 years (2016: 28 years).

Transfers are made from the profit and loss account to the Motor Ferry Replacement Reserve, to the extent
that reserves are available within the motor ferry subsidiary. In the current period transfers were made
from the profit and loss reserve to the Motor Ferry Replacement Reserve totalling £364,749 (2018:

£479,410).

Financlal commitments, guarantees and contingent llabliities

Group
The company, togsther with four other group companies, has entered into a composite guarantes in

respect of bank ovardrafts of those companies. There is a right to set off incorporated within the cross
guarantee. The net overdraft indebtness of the group companies at the year end was £Nil (2016: £Nil).

At the balance sheet date Silvermist Properties (Chelmsford) Limited has bank loans totalling £8,000,000
that are secured by a first priority legal charge on all that company's commercial properties and all group

assets.

Company
There is a cross guarantee between Fairacres Group Limited and its subsidiaries, The Boumemouth-

Swanage Motor Road and Ferry Company incorporated, Review Hotels Limited, Silvermist Properties
(Chelmsford) Limited and Silvermist Properties (Residentlai Developments) Limited in respect of bank
overdraft borrowings. At the balance sheet date, the bank overdraft borrowings of these gubsidiary

companies amounted to £4,446,348 (2016: £4,982 457).

At the belance sheet date Silvermist Properties (Chelmsford) has bank loans totalling £8,000,000 that are
secured by a first priority charge on all of that company's commercial properties, all group asseis and a
guarantee from Fairacres Group Limited for £5,000,000.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 Related Party transactions

28

29

30

Transactions with related parties
The company has taken advantage of the exemption available in FRS102 whereby it has not disclosed

transactions with any wholly owned subsidiary underiaking.

At the balance sheet date the company was owed £14,091,231 (20186: £14,104,886) by its subsldiary
undertakings.

Inciuded within creditors at the year end is £1 .700,000 {2016: £850,000) owed to directors, These amounts
are repayabie 12 months after a written demand for repayment is issued.

Caplital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

Group Company
2017 2018 2017 2016
£ £ £ £
Acquisition of tangible fixed agsets 454,100 82,740 - -

Events after the reporting date

Since the balance sheet date 2 civil claim has been settled in favour of one of the subsidiaries of the group,
Atotal of £753 846 has been received since the balance sheet date In relation to this claim,

Directors" transactions

During the year dividends paid to directors totalied £18,200 (2018: ENil).
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31  Subsidiaries

Detaiis of the company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered

office
Silvermist Properties England
(Chelmsford) Limited
Silvermist Properties England
(Resldential Developments)
Limited

Review Hotels Limited England
The Bournemouth-SwanageEngland
Motor Road and Ferry

Company

32 Cash generated from operations

Profit for the year

Adjustments for;
Taxation charged
Finance costs
Investment income

Nature of business

Commercial property

Residential Property

Hotelier
Operation of a motor ferry

(Gain)/loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Falr value gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts and investment

properties

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed agsets

Movements in working capial:
Decrease/(increase) In stocks
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
increase in credilors

Cash generated from operations

Class of % Held
shares held Direct indirect
Ordinary
100.00
Ordinary
100.00
Ordinary 100.00
Ordinary
100.00
2017 2016
£ £
1,044,278 963,501
207,766 654,403
279,065 264,176
(31,427) {30,864)
- 4 767
(25,000) (526,676)
105,183 100,000
529,524 €53,138
29,103 (90,999)
56,774 {128,715)
53,173 155,448

2,248,438 2,020,178




( Company Registration No. 03021137 (England and Walgs)

FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors GR Kean
Mrs SE Ssager
MPR Kean

Secretery Mre TA Nicol
Company number 03021137

Registerad office Falracreg
Stock Lane
Ingatestone
Essex
CM4 salL

Auditors Rickard Luckin Limited
Aqulla Housa
Waterloo Lane
Chelmsford
Essex
CM1 1BN

Business address Falracres
Stock Lane
Ingatestone
Essax
CM4 9QL

Bankers Handsisbanken - Cheimsford
Greenwood Houss
91-88 New London Road
Chalmsford
Essax
CM2 OPP

Solicitors Wortley Byers LLP
Cathedral Place
Brentwood
Essax
CM14 4E5

P.315




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

CONTENTS
Page

Strategic report 1
Diractors’ raport 2-3
independent auditors report 4-8
Profit and loss account 7
Statemant of comprahenaive income ]
Group balance shost g
Company balance shest 10
Group statament of changes In aquity 11
Company statement of changes In sqully 12
Group statament of cash flows 13
Notes to the financial staternents 14-32

P.31e6




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The diractora present lhs strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Fair review of the business
Dataile of the group trading resuits for the year are sst out In the consclidated profit and loes accaunt on page 7.

The group's gross rantal Income Increased to £523,735 from the prlor year's £511,452, This diviston haa thersfore shown
slightly Improved reayits over the jast couple of years, with the continugd vacancy of ons of itg unite pravanting the
income retuming to previously reporied levels. The carrying vakue of the investment praperly is £11,370,000 and reflects
an increass in the year of £1,032,000 following axtensive impravemant works o one of the properties. The directors
consider that the vafuation is reasonable and reflactive of the current markst.

The tumover of the ferry divigion rose £74,382 this year o £3,130,862, The repalr work that waa compieted on the ferry
thia year wes nt e reducer level, with cther repalr works to the roeds end alipways remaining conaistent with the previous
Yyoars. This has enabled the division to report a pre tax profit of £1,483,388 compared 1o £1,244,072 In the previous year.

This year s the seventh full year of trading for Review Hotels Limited. This year ths hote! has contihued o incresss gross
income which now stands &t £6,185,599 and fepresents an incraase of 4% or £211,218 compared with the previous year.
The hotel has continued Praperty repair works during the year, however despits this the company hes recorded a pre tax

Principai risks and uncertaintiss

The key business risks facing tha group are the general economic outook and consumer confidence and how this might
Impact on trading. In addition this is also Iikely o have an Impact on the property market Iin both the value of the
properties held and the rental income potanital,

Development and perfermanca

Oversll the directors consider thet the position of the group at the year end was satisfactory. In the last faw days of tha
yoar, a second hotel sita was purchased and going forward both hotels are expected to contribute to the profitabikty of
the graup. Aa part of an ovenal group strategy, the directors continue to asek the acquisition of appropriate trading
businesses to further enhance profitability.

Koy performance Indicators

For the ferry division it is lumover compared with pravious years,
For investmant proparties It Is graes rents, rental rates per square metrs and occupancy rates.
For the hotel it is room occupancy and gross margin.

In all keyy perfarmance Indicators above thera have been varying levela of Improvement. The board are pleased with this
prograss and will continue to monitor thesa key areas poing forward,

On baheif of the board
MPR Kaan

Director
10 Dacember 2018




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The directors submit thalr twenty third annual report and auditad financial staterents of the group for the year ended 31
March 2018,

Principal activities
The company provides management sarvices to Hs subsldiary companles and dentifies and investigatea further trading

opporiunities.

Through its subeldiary cornpanies the group owns, develops and Ists commarcial and residential proparties, trades 28 an
hoteller and operates, under statute, a motor driven chaln ferry.

Directors
The directora who held office during the year and up 1o the date of signature of the financlal statemants were aa follows:

GR Kean
Mre SE Sesger
MPR Kean

Resuits and dividends
The resulta for the year are gof out on page 7.

During the ysar a dividend of £18,200 was pald on the ordinery shares. No dividends were Peld on the A ardinary shares
during the year,

Directors’ nsurance
A directors’ Indsmnity policy exlsts in the form of a combined Insurance policy across the group.

Financlal Instruments

Treasury operations and fnancial instruments
The group oparates a treasury function which Is responsible for managing the liquidity, Interest and credit riaks
associated with the group's activites. The group's management of this funciion doas net includa the uss of derlvative

financlal instruments,

Liquidity risk
The group manages Its cash and borrowing requirements in order to maximise intersst income and minimiss interest
@xpenss, whilst ensuring the group has sufficient liquid resources to mes! the operating neads of the business, Funds are

transferred betwssn group companles o assist In managing thie rigk.

intorest rate rizk
The group is axposed to cash flow interest rate riak on floating rate deposits, bank overdrafis end boans. The group doas

rot use Interest rate derivatives to manags this risk as the diractors do not fes| this is necessary In the context of the
overall sk management of the business.

Credl risk
Ali customers who wish to trade on cradit tarms ara subject to credit varification Procedures. Trade dabtors are monktorad
on an ongolng basis and provisfon Is made for doubtful debis where necessary,




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Statemant of directarg’ rasponsibliities
The directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the finandal statements In accordance with applicably

law and regulations.

Company law requires the direstors to prepare fnanclal statemenis for each financiat year, Under that law ithe directors
have slscted o prapare the financial statements in accondance with Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted Aocounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and spplicable law). Under company law the directors rnust not approve
the flnanoiai statomonte unioss thoy arc satisfiod that they give a trua and fair viaw of tho stato of affalrs of the group and
compeny, and of the profit or logs of the group for that period, in preparing these financla| stalemants, the directors are
required to:

®  select suitable accounting policlas and then apply tham conalatently;

§
:
:
g
]
:
;

®  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followad, subject to any matenal departures

*®  prepare ths financial statements on the going concem basis unless It is inappropriate to presume that the

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting racords that are sufficlent to show and explain the group's
&nd company's transactions and disclose with reasonsble accuracy at any time the financlal position of the group and
company and enable them to ansure that the financlal statements comply with tha Companies Act 2008, They are also
rasponsible for safaguarding the asssts of the greup and companyy #nd hence for taking reasonabls steps for the

ravantion and detection of fraud and Irragularitias.
gtltement of disclosure to |udliat:r other legu ¢

So far a8 each person who was a director st the dats of approving this raport Is aware, there fs no refevant aucit
Information of which the Auditor of the company Is unaware, Additionally, the dirsctors individualiy have taken all the
necessary steps that they ought k> have taken as diractors in order to maka themeelvas awars of all relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor of the company Is aware of that Information,

On behalf of the board

MPR Kean

10 Decambar 2018

-3
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Oplnion .
We have audited the financlal statements of Falracres Group Limited (the ‘parent company’) and fts subsidiaries (the
'group’) for the year snded 31 March 2018 which comprise the group profit and loss account, the group statement of
comprehensive incoma, the group balance sheet, the company balance shest, the group slatemnent of changes in equlty,
the company statement of changes in equlty, the group statement of cash flows, the Company slatament of cash fiowa
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policles. The financlal reporting
framework that has bean applied in thelr preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
mcluding FRS 102 The Finanalal Roporting Standard goplicablo in the UK and Fopubiio of iroland (Unitod Kingdom
Generally Acceptad Accounting Practice),
In our opinlon the financlal statements:

®  give a true and fair view of the stata of the group's and the parent company's affaira as at 31 March 2018 and of

the group's profit for tha vear then ended;
®*  have been properly prepared in accardance with United Kingdom Cenarally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

¥ have been prepared in aacardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
Basls for opinion

&lalernanis section of our report. We are Independent of tha Gompany In accordance with tha ethical requirements that
ars relavant lo aur audit of the financial statemants In the UK, Including tha FRC's Ethical Stendard, and wa have fuifillad
our other sthical responsibilitias In accordance with these requirements. We bellave that the audit avidence we have
obtained Is suMficient and &pprapriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Conclusions refeting to going concern
We have nothing to report in respact of the followlng meattera In refatian to which the I1SAs (UK) require us to report to you

whara:
® the directors’ use of the gaing concem basis of accounting In the preparation of he flnanclal statements s not

appropriats; or
® the directors have not disgiosad In the fnancial statemants any identified matarial uncertainties that may cast
slgnificant doubt about the group’s or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concam basis of
accounting for e period of at least twelve menths from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
ue.

Other Information

statoments doas not cover the ather Information and, axcapt to the extent otharwise axplicitly stated in our report, we do
not axpress any form of assuranse conclusion thereon.

taternents or @ matarial misstatement of the other information. i, basad on the work we have perlormed, we conclude
that there la a material imisstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Wa hava nothing to report In this ragard,
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Opiniene on other mattars prescribed by the Companles Act 2008

In our opinlon, based on tha wark undartaken in the course of our audit:
® the Information given in the slratagic report and the directors’ report for the financlal year for which the financial

staternents are prepared Is consistent with the finandial statements; and
¢ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are raquirad to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge end understanding of the group and the parent company and its snvironnent obtalned in the
courae of the audlt, we have not identified materlal misstatements in the strategle raport and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companles Act 2006 requires us [o report to you
i, In our opinion:

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retumns adequate for our audit have
not been racelved from branchas hot vighad by us; or

® the parent company financial staterments ars not In agraemant with the accounting records and retumns; or

® certain disclosures of direciors’ remuneration spacifiad by lew are not made; or

® we hava not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responslbllities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibllities statement, the directors are rasponslble for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfled that they give & true and fair vlew, and for such internal control as the
diractors determine Is necassary to anable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matarial

misstatement, whsther due b fraud or error.

In praparing the financial statements, the dirsctors are responsibls for assessing the group's and the parent company’s
ability to continus as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maiters related to golng concam and using the going
concem basis of accounting unleas the dirsctors elther intend to liquidate tha group or the parent company or io cogse
operations, or have no reallstic akemative but to dg so.

Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tha finencial statements as a whole are fres from
material misstatemnent, whethsr dus to fraud or efror, and iv Issue an auditors report that includes our opinlon,
Reasonable assurancs la 2 high lavel of assurance, but 8 not a guaraniee that an sudit conducled in accordance with
I12As (UK} will aiways detsct a material misstatement when it exlists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material If, individually or in the &ggregate, they could reasonably be expected o Influence the economic
dedislons of users taken on the basls of these financial statements.

A further description of our raspongibiliies for the audit of the financlal statsrents Is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: hitp:Asvew frc.org.ui/auditorsresponelbliities. This description forma part of owr auditor's report.




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Use of our report

This report is mads solsly fo the company’s members, as a body, in accordanca with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companles Act 2008, Dur audit work has been undertaken so that we might siate to the company’s members those
matters we are required to stete to them In an auditor's report and for no other purposs. To the fullest extant permitied by
law, we do not acespt or agsume respansibliity to anyona other then the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinlons we hava formed.

Michasl Breame (Senlor Statuiory Auditor)

for and on behaif of Rickard Luckin Limited 10 Decamber 2018
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor Aqulla Houge
Waterioo Lane
Chelmeford
Essex
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2017
Notes £ £
Tumover 3 9,840,198 5,542.313
Cost of sales (4,498,838) {4,850,447)
Gross profit 5,341,380 4,881,868
Administrative expanses (3,875,571) {3,452,635)
Other oparating income 453,478 35451
Operating profit 4 1,819,267 1,474,682
Interest receivable and simitar income 7 31,059 31,427
Interest payable and similar expenses 9 (252,054) (279,085)
Amounts written off invagiments (188,4886) -
Falr value gains and losses on invegtment
properties - 25,000
Profit before taxation 1,520,788 1,252,044
Taxation 10 (381,511) (207,766)
Profit for the financial year 26 1,148,275 1,044 278
 — — ] —_—

The profit and loss account has besn prapared on the basls that all operations are continuing operaticns.




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Incoms
Tax rolafing to other comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Total comprehansive Income for the yoarls all attributable to the ownears of the parenl company.

2018
£

1,148,275

178,414

1,326,889
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED
GROUP BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 371 MARCH 2018
2019 2017
Notas 2 £ 4 4
Fixed assets
Goodwil 12 568,342 369,588
Other Intanglble assets 12 - 5,182
Total intangible assets 566,342 374,711
Tenglble asszety 13 33,949,571 30,413,162
Invesment properties 14 11,370,060 10,338,000
45,868,913 41,125,933
Current assgts
Slocks 18 517,408 370,819
Debtors 19 1348820 527,836
Cash at benk and in hand 2717439 8,630,257
4,561,787 9,528,862
Creditors: amounts falling due withinone 20
year (4,554,381} (5:880,671)
Net curent agsets 27,388 3,620,291
Total assats less current llabliitles 45,918,209 44,755,224
Crediors: amounts falling due after more 21
than one year (e,700,000) (8,700,000)
Provislons for Nabilities {1.084,070) (1,231,484)
Net assets 35,132,229 33,823,740
—_—_— — _
Capital and ressrves
Called up share capltal 25 2,005 2,085
Share premium eccount 805,838 805,839
Other reserves 18,852,811 18,842,015
Motor ferry replacement reserve 2,491,091 1931434
Profit and logs ressrvas 12,838,085 12,097,820
Discount on acqulsition 144,528 144,628
Equity aitributable to owners of the parent company
35,132,229 33,823,740

—_— ]




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
2018 2017
Notas £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible agsels 13 2 410
investments 15 518,740 518,740
518,742 519,150
Current assets
Debtors 19 20,084,448 14,091,231
Cash at bank and in hend 170 5,306,872
20,084,616 18,297,103
Craditors: amounts falling due within ane 20
year {238,503) (66,587)
Net current assets 19,828,113 19,341,538
Total assaty [asg currant Habilities 20,344,855 19,860,686
L — —"—
Capltal and reserves
Callad up gharg capital 25 2,085 2,005
Shere premium account 26 805,839 805,839
Profit and loss reserves 18,536,921 19,052,752
Yotal equity 20,344,835 19,880,088
p——————

MPR Kean
Director

Company Registration No. 03021137

=10~




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Balance at 1 April 2015

Perlod ended 31 March 2017-

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the yaar
Transfers

Balance at 31 March 2017

Perlod ended 31 March 2018;
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Income:
Tex relsting to other comprehensive income

Total comprehengive incoma for the year
Dividends

Transfers

Transfer hisloric ravalvation reserve

Balance at 31 March 2018

Share capital 8hare Other Discounton Motor ferry  Profitand Total
premium  reserves acquisition roplacemantloss reserves
account TesoIvVe
Notes £ £ £ g £ . £ £
2,085 805,839 18,849,743 144528 1586685 11 282,256 32,651,148
- 1,044278 1,044,278
145,518 - . - 148,516
146,516 . = 1044278 1 190,794
1 - . (18200)  (18,200)
(164,244) - 384,749 (210,505) -
2,085 805,839 18,842,015 144528 1,931 434 12,097,829 33,823,740
= 1148275 1 14p.275
- 178,414 - - - 178414
- 178.414 - - 1148275 132888
L . - {18.200) {18.200)
{154,244) - 559,657 {405,413) -
(13.574) - - 13,574

2,095 805,839 18,852,611 144528 2 491,001 12,836,065 35,132,229
—_————— —_—_———— —_—

~-11-
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Share capital Share  Profit and Total
premiumioss reserves
actount
Notes £ 2 £ £
Balance ot § April 2018 2,095 805,839 18,446,883 19,254,797
Year ended 31 March 2017:
Profit and tots comprehansive income for the ysar - - 524,089 824,089
Dividends 11 - (18,200) (18,200)
Balance at 31 March 2017 2,085 805839 18,052,752 19,860,686
Year ended 31 March 201s:
Prafit and tote} comprehensive Income for the year - - 502,369 502,389
Dividends 1" - - (18,200) (18,200}
Balance at 31 March 2018 2,095 805,839 19,538,921 20,344,855

=12-
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Cash Howa from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 30
Interest pald

Income taxes paid

Net cash Inflow from operating actlvities

Investing activities

Purchase of Intangible sasets (300,000)
Purchase of tangfble fixed asaets (4,127,808}
Furchase of Investment property (1.200,486)
Intarest recelved 31,058

Nat cash used in investing activitles

Financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholdsrs (18,200)

- —

Net cash used In finanoging actlvitiss

Net (decreasa)increase In cash and cash
aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivaients at snd of year
Relating to:

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdrafts included in cradifors payabie
within ane year

2,517,580

(252,054)
(268,887)

1,996,648

(5,587,238)

{18,200)

(3,618,788)

4,183,808

585,121

2,717,439

(2,152,318)
=

M7

(10,385)
(250,532)

31,427

(18,200)

2,245,439

(279,085)
(381,584)

1,587,810

{220,470}

(18,200)

1,340,140

2,843,769

4,183,909

8,630,257

{d.446,348)
=

-43.




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1.1

12

1.3

Accounting policies

Company Information )
Falracres Group Limited ("the company™) is & privale iimited compary domiclisd and Incorporated In England and
Wales, The ragistered offica is Falracres, Stock Lane, Ingatesione, Essex, CM4 sqaL.

The group congists of Falracres Group Limited and all of its subsidiaties,

Accounting convention
Thess financlal statements hava bsen prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financlal Reporting Standard
appiicable In the UK and Republic of Ireland® {"FRS 102"} and the requirements of the Companles Act 2008,

The financlal statements are prepared In aterilng, which is the functional currency of the company. Moretary a
mounts In these financial siatements are rounded to the nearest £.

The fnancial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention, modified ta include the
revaluation of freehoid properties and to ingluds investment prapertiss and certain financlal instrumants at fair
value. The principal accounting pollcies adopted are gt out balow.

As permitied by s408 Companles Act 2008, the Company has not presentad Its own profit and loss account and
related notes, The Gompany's profit aftar taxation for the yoar was £502,369 (2017: £624,089),

Basis of consolldation

All Intra-group transactions, balances and unreslisad gains on iransactions betwesn group companies are
ekiminated on consolidation, Unrealisad lossse are 2i80 silminated unless the transaction provides evidance of an
impalrment of the aesst lransfarred.

Wharg nhacessary, adjustments are made o the financial statements of subsldiaries to bring the aceounting poficies
used Into line with those used by other membaers of the Group.

The oost of the combination inciudas the estimatad amount of contingent consideration that Is probabia and can be
Mmeasured reliably, and is adjustad for changes In contingent cansideration after the acquisition dats,

Going concam
At the time of approving the financiai statements, the directors have a reasonable expeciation that the company

has adequate rescurcas to continue In operational existence for the foreseeabla uture. Thus the directors continue
to adopt the going concern basie of accounting in preparing the financial staternents,

-14.




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2078

1.5

16

1.7

Accounting policles {Contlnued)

Turnover
Cradit ig taken for rents on a daily basie. Any amounts of rent recelved in advance are carriad forward.

Credlt s taken for the tofl income on & daily basis, Any amount received in advance is camed forward.

Hote! tumover represants amounts recelvable for goods and services net of VAT and trade discounta.

Intangtble fixed assets - poodwill

Acquired goodwlll Is written off In equal annual instalments aver its estimated useful economic life which the
diractora belleve to be 10 yBars,

intangfble fixed assets other than goodwill

Intangible asaets acquired separately from a buslness are recognisad at cost and are subssquently reasured at
cast legs accumulated amortisation ang gccumulated impalment losses.

Amorilsation [s Yacognised ao as to wiite off the cost or valustion of assets less their residual valuas over thelr
usaful lives on the following bases:

Other intangibles 2 ysars
Tangibla fixsd agaets

Tangible fixed aseets are Initally measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost of valuation, net of
depreclation and any impakment losses.

Fixed assets are stated at cost or profassional valuation, less depreciation. Depreciation s calculated to write off
Tixed assels over their estimated useful llvas at the foliowing annual rates:

Freehold land end buildings NIl

Motor farry 33 years straight line basis

Fhxtures, fittings and squipment $- 10 years alraight iina basls

Plant, machinery and molor vehicies 20-25% reducing balance basls and 20% straight line basis

The galn or loss arising on the dispasal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale procesds and
the camying value of the asset, and Is recognised in the profit and ioss agoount.

The group has adopted the transltionef armangementa Included within FR8102 and have chosen to "freaze” the
valuation of certain land and buildings and the Motar Ferry as at the dats of tranallion; 31st March 2014, No
subsequent valuations are therefore Included and the valuation at that date becomes the "deemed cost".

-95.




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1.9

110

Atcounting poficles {Continued)

Investmant properties

investment proparty, which s Praperty held to earn rentsls ancifor for capital appraciation, is measured using the
fair value madal and steted at its fair value as the raporting end date. The surpius or deficht on revaluation Is
recognised In the prof and lose account.

Investment properties are Included in the balance sheet at thelr falr vaiue. Although this accounting policy Is In
accordance with FRS102, itis a departure from the general requiremenis of The Companles Act 2006 for all

Where fair value cannot bs achleved without undus cost or effort, investment property Is accounted for a8 tanglbie
fixed assety.

Fixed asset Investments
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is tha power (o govern the financial and operating policies
of tha entity 50 2s to obtaln benefits from lis activiles. Subsidiarles ars canried in the company's balance sheet at

cost lase provision for Impairment.

Impalrment of txad assete

At each reporting perlod end date, the group reviews tha carrying aimounts of its tangitie and intanglble assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have gufferad en impairment ioes, It any such indlcation
exists, the recoverable amount of the assot s estimated In order to determine the axtont of the Impairment losa (it
any). Whera it Is not possible to estimate the racoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit o which the assat belongs.

The carying amount of the Invesiments accounted for using the equity method Is testad for impalrmant as a single
asset Any goodwill Included In the oamying amount of the Investment Is not tested separataly for Impairment.

intang|ble assets with indefinite useful lives end Intanglble seseta not yot avaflable for use are teated for impalrment
annually, and whenever there is an indication thet the assat may be impaired.

Recoverable amount ls the higher of fulr value less cosls o sall and value In use. In asgaseing value In uge, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present vajue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts civrant
markel assessments of the time value of monay and the riake specific to the asset for which the estimales of futurs

cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit} ls estimatsd to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset {or cash-genarating unit) Is reduced io lta recoverable amount. An impalment losa Is
recognised immadiately in prefit or loss, unless the relevant aselis carriad at a revalued amount, In which case
the impalrment loss Is reatad as a revaluation decroass,
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1

111

112

113

Accounting policles (Continued)

Stocks
Stocks are stated st the lower of o8t and estimeted salling price less cosls to complete and sall.

Stooks held for distribution at no or nominal conslderation are measured at cost, adjustad where applicable for any
loae of servics potential,

Stocks held for the purpose of the ferry re-fit are stated at cost and are not held for aaia,

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for Impairment, Any excess of the camying amount of slocks over
Its sstimated selling prica less costs to complete and sell is recognised gs an Impalment loss in prefit or loss.
Ravarsale of Impairment [ozses ara alsa recognlsad In profll or logs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and In hand are basir financlal agsets and Include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other shart-term iiquid investments wilh original maturities of three months or less, and bank averdrafts. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings In current llabliites.

Financisl instruments
The group has elected to @pply the provisions of Section 11 'Bask Flnanctat instruments’ and Saetion 12 'Other
Financlal Instruments lssues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financlal instrurnents.

Financial instruments are recoghised in the group's balance sheet when the group bacomes party to the
contractual provisions of the Ingtrumant.

Flnanclsi assets and liabilltes are offeat and the nat amounts presantad In the financlal statements when there Is a
{agally enforceable fight to set off the recognised amounts and there [s an intention to setila on a net basis or o
realiss the asset and settie the ltabfiity simuitaneausly.

Basic financlal assets

Basic financial asests, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, ere Initially measured at transaction
price Including transaction costs and are subsequently carrfad at amortised cost using the effective Interest method
uniges the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, whare the transaction is measurad at the presant value
of the future recelpts discounted at s market rate of inferest. Financial assete Classifiad as receivable within one

year are not amortisad.

Other financiel assots
Other financlal assets, including investments In equity Instruments which are nct aubeidiarios, associates or joint

ventures, are inltially measured gt falr value, which Is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsegquently
carrled at feir vaiue and the changes in fair value are recogniged In profit or loss, Bxcept that investments In equity
instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured relflably are measured at cost

leas impairment.

=17 -




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

114

115

Aecounting policies (Continued)

Imppirment of Mnsncisl xssets
Financlal assets, othar than thoss heid at falr value through profit and loes, are assassed for indicators of

impaimaent at sach reporting end dete.

Financlal assets are Impalrad whare thera Ja objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
gccurred after the inlial recognition of the financial assat, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If an
asaet Is impalred, the Impairment loss s the differance between the carrying amount and the present valus of the
estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effactive interest rate. The impalrmant loss la recognised in
profit or loss.

If there Is a decrense in the impairment loss arsing from an event ecouring afier the impatrment wes recognised,
the Impalrmant is reversad, The reversal ls such that the cument caimying amount does not exceed whet the
carrylng amount would have been, had the impairment not praviously been recognised. The impairment reversal Is
recognised in profit or loss,

Derecognition of financial agsets

Financial aesets ars derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flaws from the agsst @xpire or ara
setliad, or when the group tranafers the financial asset and substantialy all the risks and rewsrda of ownerehip to
another entlly, or if some significant riska and rewards of ownerghip are retalned but control of the asest has
fransferred to another party that i abla to el the asset In ta snfirety to an unrelated thind party.

Classiffcation of financial Nebilities
Financlel ifabiiitles and aquily Instruments ars classifled according to the substance ef the contractual
amangements entared into. An aquity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Dsbt instrurments are subsequently carried at amortiead cogt, uslng the effective Intereat rate method.

Trade creditors are cbllgations o pay for goods or services that heve besn acquired in the ordinary course of
busineas from suppllars. Amounts payable are classified as cument liabilities i peyment is due within one year or
{ezs. H not, they are presented as non-currant llgbliities. Trade creditors are recognised Initially at transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive Intersst mathod,

Derecognition of financial ltabMities
Financial liablities ane derocognised when the proup’s contractuel obligations expire or are discharged or

cancslied.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments laauad by the group are recordad gt the proceads recalved, net of direct ksus costs, Dividends
payable on equily Instrumenta are recognised as llabiiities once they are no longer at the diacretion of the group.

Taxatlon
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currantly payable and deferrad tax,

~18-
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1.18

117

118

Accounting policies {Continued)

Current tax
The tax currently payable ie based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit diffars from net profit as reporied in
the profit and Ioss 2ecount because It excludas items of income or expanse that amn taxabls or deductible In other

Deferred tax

Defomed tax iiablities are genarally recognised for all timing differences and defermed tax assets are recognised i
the extent that it Is probable that they wifl be recovered &gains! the reversal of defarred tax ligbllitles or other future
taxable profite. Such assets and llabliites are not recognised If the timing difference arges from goodwill or from
the Initfe! recogniiion of othar sasets and llabllities in a transaction that affacts neither the tax prof nar the

accounting profit

and liabifitles are offset I, and only if, there Is a legally erforceable fight to offset current tax assets and Fablitles
and the deferred tax asssts and ilabilittes relste to taxes levied by the same tax authority,

in accordance with FRS102 defemed (ex Is provided In respact of historically revalued assels ag appropriate.

In the consalidated financial slatemenis currant tax on profits for tha current period i shown prior to the application
of group refief. Group rellef i2 applled where avalabls and each company pays or receives £1 for every £1 of tax
Saved. This Is accounted for at the point of submission of the appropriate retumns. Amounts payable or receivabie
are sliminated on consalldation,

Employge benefits
The costs of short-term empioyee benefits are recognised as g Hablity and an expense, uniess thoee costs are
requirad to be racognized as part of the cost of slock or fixed assats,

The cost of any unused holiday entitiement is recoghised In the perod in which the amployae’s sarvices are
raceived,

Teminatlon benefits are recognised Inmediately as an expense when the company Is demonstrably committed to
terminate the employment of an employse or to provide tarmination benefits.

Motor ferry replacement reserve

An amount Is set asids over a period of 33 years from 31 March 1683 lo renaw the motor femy by the transfer of an
amount to the Mator Ferry Replacement Regerve, whers sufficlent funds are available. As this is an ailocation of
profitand loss account reserves it may ba nacessary, In the future, 1o Hize part of the provision to fund substantial
other lterns of axpenditure.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2 Judgemenis and key sources of estimation uncertainty

considered to be relevant. Aclual resuity may difier from these sstimatas.

The eatimates znd undertying assumpfions are reviewsd on an ongolng basls. Revisiona to accounting estimates
fé recognised In the period in which the estimats i revised where tha revision affects only that parfed, or in the
period of the revision and futurs perieds whera the revision affests both current and future periods.

a Turnover and other revenue

An analysis of the group's tumover Is as foliows:

Turnaver

Property rental
Tolls

Hatel - services
Hatal - goods

q Operating profit

Operating profit for the year fs stated afler charging:

Depreciation of ownsd tangible fixed ssscts
Amortisation of intanglble assets
Cost of atocks recognised as an expense

Tha amortlsation of intangible aasets s Inoluded within administration expenses,

8 Audifor's remuneration
Fees payable to the company’s audifor and assoclates:

For audit services

Audit of the financlal statements of the group and company
Audit of the financial statements of the company's
subsidiaries

2018 2017

£ £

523,735 511,452
3,130,862 3,056,480
3,768,552 3,863,138
2417047 2,311,242
8,840,186 9,642,313
= S
2018 207

£ £

591,400 629,524
105,429 108,183
1,208,412 1,368,762
L ==
2018 2017

£ £

14,585 13,750
29,990 28,800
44,575 43,550

L ]
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

€  Employees
The average monthly number of persons (including direciors) smployed by the group and company durng the ysar
was!
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2M7
Number Number Number Number
Operations 208 209 3 3
Administration 30 40 7 8
238 249 10 11
L ——— ] E—— 1 ] e
Thelr aggregate remuneration comprised:
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
[4 £ 5 £
Wages and salaries 3,781,772 3,482,188 586,030 385,888
Soclal security costs 235,917 205,883 69,014 44,189
Pension costs 52,089 81,247 - -
4,069,778 3,749,088 835,044 431,057

—__ s ==

v =

7 Interest recelvable and similar Income

2018 2017
£ £

interest income
Interest on bank dapostts 30,818 31.420
Other intereat income 143 7
Total income 31,059 9,427

investment income Includes the following:

Interest on financial assets not measured at falr value through profit or inss 30,916 31,420

8 Directors’ remuneration

2013 2017
£ £
Remuneration for qualliying servicas 437,788 257,100

_— me———
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

8 Diractors' remuneration (Continued)
Remuneralion disclosed above includes (he following amounis peid Lo Ihe highes! paid director;

Remunsration for qualifying services 183,000 150,000

0 Interest payabie and similar expenses

2018 2017
£ £
interest on financlal labiMtles measured at amostised cost:
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 252,038 278,857
Other finance costs:
Other Interest 18 208
Total finance costs 252,054 279,085
10 Taxation
2018 2017
£ £
Current tax
UK cerporation tax on profits for the current period 381,356 289,731
Adjustments in respact of prior periods (30,844) {71,065)
Total currant tax 350,511 217,786
=3 | — ]
Deferrad tax
Origination and reversal of timing differances 31,000 {53,600)
Tax loeses carried forward - 47,600
Other adjustments - {4,000}
Total deferrad tax 31,000 {10,000)
Total tax charge for the year 381,511 207,788
E—— . — |




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

10 Taxation

1

{Continued)

The eclual charge for the year can be recaonciled to the expected charge based on the profit or icas and the

standard rate of fax ae follows:

2018 2017

£ £

Profit before taxation 1,529,786 1,252,044

e L —— ]

Expactad tax chargs based on the standard rate of corparation tax In the UK of

18.00% (2017: 20.00%) 250,859 260,409

Tax effact of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 41,740 18,589
Gains not taxable - {5.000)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losees not previcusly recognised - {16,778}

Change in unrecognisad defemred tax assets 32,938 26,682
Adjusiments in raspect of prior years {30,844) (71,966)

Effact of change in corporation tax rats 1,032 -
Permanent capital allowances In excess of depreciation - (16,9886)

Depraciation on assets not quafifying for tax allowances 14,985 32,865
Deferred tax movement 31,000 {10,000)

Taxatton charge for the year 381,511 207,766

——

In addition to the amount charged to the profit and loss account, the following amounts relating to tax have been

recognised directly in other comprsheansive income:

2018
£
Deferred tax arising on:
Revaluation of property (178,414)
E—m—=—=
Dividends
2018
£
Interim paid 18,200
—————

2017
£

(146,518)
—_—

2017

18,200
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/ FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

/ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

12 Intanglhie fixed assats

Group

Cont

At1 April 2017

Additions - saparately acquired
At 31 March 2018

Amortisation and Impalrment
At 1 April 2017

Amortisation charged for the year
At 31 March 2018

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

QoodwlOiher intangiles Tolal

£ £ £
1,000,000 10,385 1,010,385
500,000 - 300,000
1,300,000 10,385 1,310,365
630,411 5,183 635,594
100,247 5,182 105,429
730,658 10,385 741,023
568,342 - 568,342

P e

369,589 5,182 ara,rm
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

13

Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost or valuation

At1 April 2017

Additions

Disposalg

At 31 March 2018

Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2017

Depraciation charged in the year
Eliminatad in respect of disposals
At 31 March 2018

Camrying amount
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017
Analysis of cost or valuation at 31 March
2018

Valuation
Cost

Company

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2017 end 31 March 2018

Depreciation and Impalrment
At 1 April 2017

Deprectation charged in the year
At 31 March 2018

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

Freshold land Wotor feryPixtures, MtngsPiant, machinery Tolwi
wid bulldings and squipmant and motor
wehicles

£ £ £ £ £
29,088,877  1,800.000  1.893.150 200,297 33,083,324
4,032,578 18,753 40,374 35,106 4,127,809

. . . {80,000) {80,000}
33102453 1,919,753 1,933,524 155403 37,111,133
1,002,316 ars,s72 788,885 183,308 2,650,182
239,873 135,911 203,074 12,542 681,400

. : {80,000} {80,000)
1,242 189 814,483 £689,039 115,851 3,181,562
31,860,264 1,105,270 944,486 39,552 33,040,571
28,062,733 1,357,142 1 241,242 16,888 30,413,192
11,685,037  1,800.000 - - 13,885,037
21,136,269 - 1,983,524 155,403 23,225,198
33,122,206 1,900,000 1,833,524 155,403 37,111,133
Fixtures, filtings and squipment

£

14,226

13,m8

408

14,224

2
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

13 Tangible fixed sssets (Continued)

14

Land and buiikdings held within the subsidlary company opereling the motar ferry, were revalued at ths date of
transltion to FR3102 by professional valuers not connectsd with the campany at £12,370,000. I addition the motor
ferry wes velued at £1,800,000. This total valuation has then been "frozen" under the transitonal amangemsnts

included within FR8102,

On & historical cost basis the freehoid land end buitdings revalued would ba Included at a cost of E511,015 and
book value at 31 March 2018 of £302,155. The motor ferty would be Included at & cost of £2,123,690 snd a £nil nat
book value at 31 March 2018,

InGhided within land and buildings Is a two and & half mile strip of land which Is accupled for the ferry mad and i»
hald In perpetuity under the tarms of The Bournemouth-Swanage Molor Road and Ferry Act 1823.

It revalued assets were stated on an historical cost bagis rather than & falr value baeis, the total amounts Included
would have been as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Cost 2,745,406 2,789,751 - -

Accumulated depreciation bagsd on historlc cost
2,505,809 2,480,927 -

Carrying value 238,507 328,824 - -

— = L — I —— ]
Investment proparty
Group Company
2018 2018
£ £
Fair value
At 1 Aprll 2017 and 31 March 2018 10,338,000
Addltions through external acquisition 1,200,488
Net gaina or losses through fair value adjusiments (168,488) .
At 31 March 2018 11,370,000 -

Investment proparty comprises both residential and commercial invesiment property. The falr value of the
residential Investment property has been arrived &t on the basis of a professional valustion abtained by the
directors as at 31 March 2017. The directors do not belleve the value of the residentlal lnvestment property haa
chuangad materiaily to 31 March 2018. The valuation was made on a falr value basls by reference to market

evidence of transacton prices for simliar properties.

At 31 March 2018 the direciors completed a valuation of the commerchal Investment properties. Thie valuation
showad a velus of £8,745,000, which is the falr value used in thess financial statements

It inveatment propertiea wers stated on a historic cost basis rather than a fair value basls, the cost would be stated
s £4,708,219 (2017: £3,507,734).
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

15 Fixed asset Invastmants
@roup Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes £ £ E £
Investmenis In subeidiaries - - 518,740 518,740
—_— | —— =
Movemenis in fixed assel investments
Company Shares In group
undertakings
£
GCost or valuation
At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 518,740
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018 518,740
Al 31 March 2017 518,740
1€ Subsidiaries
Details of the compary's subaidiaries at 31 March 2018 are as follows:
Neme of undertaking Reglstered Nature of busineas Class of % Held
cffice sharsa held Direct Indirect
Review Hotels Limited England Hotellsr Ordinary 100.00
Silvarmist Properties England Commercial property Ordinary
(Chelmsford) Limited 100.00
Sllvermist Propearties England Residential Property Crdinary
(Residential Developmants)
Limitad 100.00
The Boumemouth-Swanage England Operation of 2 motor farry Ordinary
Moator Road and Ferry
Company 100.00
17 Financlel instruments
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Carrying amount of financlal assets
Dabt Instruments measured at amortised cost 317,113 188,535 20,064,446 14,001,231
Carrying amount of financlal Nabilitiss
Measured at amortisad cost 11,133,849 15,243,458 8,077 20,887
L — ] ——- T _
-97.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL ST ATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

18 Siocks
Broup Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Raw materials and consumables 326,206 220,129 .
Finishad goods and goods for resale 191,112 150,680 -
517,408 370,819 - -
19  Debtors
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Amounts falling dus whthin one year: £ £ £ £
Trade debtors 282,334 181.621 - -
Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings - - 20,064,448 14,091,231
Othar debtors 842,680 6,914 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 421,908 358,351 - -
1,348,820 527,886 20,064,448 14,091,231
20  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 207
Notes £ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 2,152,318 4,446,348 184,576 .
Trade creditors 778,870 300,862 8,022 3,082
Corporation tax payahble 231,347 148,723 - -
Other taxation and social security 8,721 206,490 28,100 34,680
Other creditors 854,979 408,175 55 55
Accruals and deferred incoms 657,148 208,073 18,750 17,750
4,554,381 5,809,671 238,503 55,587
_ pr——
-28.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

21  Creditors: smounts falling due after more than ene year

Broup Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes £ £ £ £
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 8,000,000 8,000,000 - -
Other craditors 1,700,000 1,700,000 - -

9,700,000 9,700,000 - -

The bank loan fx secyred by & firet priority legal charge over the property of the bormowing subsldiary company,
Silvermist Properties (Chelmsford) Limitad which has a canying value of £0,745,000, and over all cther group
sssets inckiding a guarantes from the guarantor (Falracres Group Limitad) for the principal sum of £8,000,000
together with interest and cogts.

Direciors' ipana totaliing £1,700,000 are sacured by a fixed charge over one of the praperiles hefd in fixed assets.

22  Loans and overdrafts

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £
Bank lcans 8,000,000 8,000,000 - -
Bank averdrafta 2,152,318 4,446,348 184,676 -
Directors’ Joan accounts 1,700,000 1,700,000 - -
11,852,318 14,146,348 184,578 -
Payable within one yaar 2,152,318 4,446,348 184,576 .
Payable afer ane year 9,700,000 9,700,000 - -

==_

23  Deferred taxstion

Deferred tax assets and lablities are offeat where the group or company has a legally enforceabla right to do so.
The following s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (aftar offset} for financlal reporting purposes:

Liabiiities Liabilitins

2018 2017
Group £ £
Accelerated capttal aliowances 676,000 531,000
Revaluations 481,070 650,484
Investment proparty 27,000 41,000

1,084,070 1,231,484




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

23 Deferred taxation (Continued)
The cormpany has 1o defemed tax aageis or lablllias.

Group Company

2018 218
Movaments In the year: £ £
Liablitty at 1 Apri 2017 1,231,484
Chargae to profit or loss 31,000 .
Credit to other comprehensive incoms {178,414) -
Liability at 31 March 2018 1.084,070 -

n_

24 Retirement banefit schemes

2018 2017
Deflned contribution schemus £ £
Charge to profit and loss In respect of defined contribution schemas 52,089 81,247

A defined contribution Penslon schems Is oparated for all qualifying employees. The assets of the schame are held
saparataly from those of the group In an independently administersd tfund,

23 Share capital

Group and company

2018 2017

Ordinary share capital £ £
Issuad and fuliy pald

3,460 Ordinary of 50p each 1,745 1,745

700 A Ordinary of 50p each 350 350

2,095 2,085

“n




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

26 Reserves
Other resorves

Thess arise on the historic revaluation of fixed assets by subslidiary companles and are not distributabla.

Equity reserve
Profit and loas raserve

inchuded within the profit and loss reserve [8 £565,248 of fair valya gains en inveaiment properties, leas £27,000 of
associated deferred tax. This total of £538,248 Is not disiributabls to the members.

Motor ferry replacement reserve

In June 2008, the company obtained a professional astimate of the cost of bullding a diesel electric pawsred motor
farry {o replace the company's existing vesssl, the approximate coet waa £8,179,500. If full provislon for renewal
had been made, based on this figura with an aseumed Inflation of 3% par annum, the Mator Ferry Replacement
Resarve at the balance ghest date wouki have totalled £7,646,627 (2017: £7,297,008) based on a pariod of 33

yoars

Transfers are made from the prafit and loss account to the Motor Ferty Replacement Resarve, to the extent that
reserves are avaliable within the motor ferry subsidiary. In the current perlod transfors were made from the profit
and loss reserve to the Molor Farry Replacemant Resarve tolalling £550,857 (2017; £384,749).

427  Financlal commlitments, guarantess and contingent jiabllities

Group
The company., together with four ather group companies, has entered Into a composlta guaranies In reapact of bank

Ovérdrafta of theea companies. There is a right to set off Incorporatad within the <ross guarantes, The net overdraft
indebtnese of the group companies at the year and waa £Np (2017: £NIT).

At tha balance sheet date Silvermist Properties (Chelmsford) Limited has bank loans totalling £8,000,000 that are
Sécuned by a first priority legal charge on ail that Gompany’s commercial properties and afl group assets.

Company

There Is & croes guerantse belween Falracres Group Limited and its subsidiaries, The Boumsmouﬂu—&wanage
Motor Road and Ferry Company Incomporated, Reviaw Hotsls Limited, Siivermist Propertioa {Cheimaford) Limited
and Sfivermist Proparties (Residential Developments) Limited In respact of bark overdraft botowings. At the
balance sheet date, the bank overdraft borrowings of these subsidiary companiss amounted to £1 867,742 (2017:

£4,448,348).

At the balence sheet date Slivermist Fropertios (Chalmsford) has barik loans lotaling £8,000,000 that are seayred
by a first priority chargse on all of that company’s comrmesclal properties, all group assets and guerantse from

Fairacres Group Limitsd for £5,000,000,
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

28  Related party transactions
Transactions with related parties

The company has taken advantage of the examption avallable In FRS1072 whereby It has not disclosed transactions
with any whally owned subsidiary undertaking.

At the balance sheet date the company was owed £20,064,446 (2017: £14,001,231) by it subsidiary undertakings.

Included within creditors at the year end Ig £1,700,000 (2017: £1,700,000) owed t direciors. These amounts are
repayabls 12 months after a written demand for rapayment Is issued.

20 Directors' transsctions
During the yeer dividends paid 1o directors totalled £18,200 (2017: £18,200).

30 Cash generated from group operations

2018 2017
£ £

Profit for the year after tax 1,148,275 1,044,278
Ad|ustments for:
Taxafion charged 381,511 207,766
Finance costs 252,054 279,065
Investment income (31,059) (31,427)
Falr value galns and losses on Torelign exchange contracts and investment
properties 168,486 {25,000)
Amortisation and Impalrment of intangible assate 105,429 105,183
Depraciation and Impairment of tangible fixed assaty 531,400 529,624
Movements In warking capital:
(Increase)decroess In stocks (148,589) 29,103
(Incraaseydecrease In debtors (211,133) 56,774
(Decreass)/increass in credlions (90,785) 53,173
Increase in defamred Income 350,000 -
Cash generatad from operations 2,517,589 2,248,439
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The directora prasent the atrategic report for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Fair reviow of the business

The group's grosg rentsl Income Incressed i £582,522 from the Pilor year's £523,735, This division hag thersfore
continued to show Improved resuits over the jast coupla of years, Fallowing exisnsiva Improvement worka to one of the
properties last year, this Property is now partly tenanted and the direciors are confident of further Improvement in this

area of tha business,

Tha tumover of the fany division fell £622,419 this yaer to £2,508,443. The repalr work that Wwaas compisted on the farry
thia year was extsnsive and Invalved the ferry belng out of the water for an extanded period as par of the four yearly

Principal riaks and uncertainties
The key business rigks facing the group are the genenal economic outiook and oonsumer confidertoe and how this right

properties held and the rantal income polental,

Developmant and performance

Ovarall the directors conelder that the position of the group at the year and wag aatiefactory. The directors are working
fowards plans to devebp soms of the Properties held within the group, As part of an overall group stratagy, the directors
continue to seek the acquisilion of appropriate trading busineases to further enhance profitzbiilty.

Key parformance Indicators

The board monitors progress on overall sirategy by reference to a verisly of key performance indicators due 1o the
diversa nature of the group's operations,

For the farry division itis turnover compared with previous vears.

For investmant Properiles it is groas rents, rental ratas per square metre and QCCUpPAncy rates.

For the hotel it is room Gccupancy and gross margin,

On behalf of the board

MPR Kean
Director
18 July 2019
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

The directors subrmit thelr twenty fourth annual Feport and audited financial statements of the group for the year endad 31
March 2018,

Principal activities
Tha company provides management services to itg subsidiary companias and identifies and investigates further trading

Cpporunities,

Through s subslkdiary companies the group owns, develops and Iats commercial and residentiai Properties, trades as an
hoteller and Oporates, under statute, a motor driven chaln {orry.

The directors who held office during the year and up io the date of signature of the financal statemenis ware as follows:

GR Kean {Deceased) {Resigned 28 Decomber 2018)
Mrs SE Seager
MPR Kean

Results and dividends
The rasulta for the year are set out on paga 7.

During the year g dividend of £130,000 Was paid on the ordinary shares. No dividerds werg Ppeld on the A ordinary
shares during the year.

Directors’ insurance
A directors* indemrmity pollcy exists In the form of a combined Insurance policy across the group.

Financlal instruments

Treasury operations and financiaf Instruments
The group operates a treasury function which ig fesponsible for menaging the llquidity, hterest and credit risks
assoclated with the group's activities, The group's managernent of thig function does not Include the use of derivative

financlal Instruments.

Liquidtty rigk
The group manages its cash and borrowing requirements in order to maximise Interest income and minimise Intsrest

6xpensa, whiist ensuring tha group has sufficlant liquid fesources to meet the operating needs af ihe business. Funds are
transferred batwean group companias fo aesist In Managing this rigic,

Interest rate risic
Tha group fs axposed (o cash flow Intarest rate risk ont floating rate deposlts, bank overdrafis &nd loans. The group does
nat use intsrest rate derivatives to manage this risk as tha directors do not fee] this Is hecessary in the context of tha

oversall risk management of the business,

Cradit rigsk
All customers who wish to trade on cradit terms are subjact to credit verification procadurss, Trade debtors are monitored

on an ongoing basls and provigion Is made for doubtiy] debts wherg necessary.

-2.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34 MARCH 2019

Disabled persons
Appilcations for employment by disablad persone are always fully considered, bearing In mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concamed. In the event of marmnbers of staff becoming disabled, overy effort is made to ensure that thelr
employment within the group continues and that ihe gppropriate training is amanged. It is tha policy of the graup that the
tralning, cargar devalopment and promotion of disabled parsons should, as far ag Posshie, be identical 1o that of other

employsas,
Employes involvement

The group's poficy Is to consult and discuss with amployees at meetings, matters likely to affect empioyess' Interasts,
Information about matiers of cancem to employess is glven through Informasion bulletins and reports which esek to

Statement of directory responsibliitiey
Tha dirsotors are responsibie for Preparing the Annua) Raport and the finandal statements In accordance wiih applicabls

law and regulations.

rmquired o:

®  sdlect sultabls accounting policies and then apply them consiatently;

make judgements and accourting estimates that are reasonabia and prudent;

pplcable UK Accounting Standards have besn followad, subject to any mateial departures
disclased and explained In the financial statements;

®*  prepare the fnanclal statements on the going concem basis unless it Is inappropriate to prasume that the
company will continus In business,

8
)
:
A

ghhmant of disciosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director af the date of approving this report is aware, there Is no relevant audit
Information of which the auditor of the company s unaware, Addlﬂonally. the directors Individually havs taken all the
necessary steps that they ought to have taken 8s directors In order 1o make themssives aware of all relevant audit
Information and to estabilah that the auditor of the company ls aware of that information,

On behalf of the boarg

MPR Kean
Director
18 July 2019




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of Falracres Group Limked (the ‘parent company’) and lis subsidlanss (the
‘sroup’} for the year snded 31 March 2019 which comprise the groug profit and loas account, the group statement of
comprehensive Income, the graup balance shest, the company balance sheet, the group statemeant of changes in eqully,
the company statement of changes in aquilty, the group etatement of cash flows, the company statement of cash flows
and notes to the financial statemants, including a summary of significant accounting policles. The financlal reporting
framework that has besn applied in thelr preparation is applicable lsw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 The Finanolal Roporting Standard aoplicablo In the UK and Republic of lrofond {United Kingdom
Generaliy Accepted Accounting Practica).

In our oplnion the financlal statements:
* give a true and fak view of the stats of the group's and the parant company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of
the group's loss for the year then endad;
® have been properiy proparsd In accordance with Unitsd Kingdom Generally Acoepted Accounting Practice; and
*® have bean prepared in acsardance with tha requiraments of the Companlss Act 2008,

Bagls for opinlon
We conducied our aucht in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable faw, Our

responsibillies under those standards are further described In the Aud¥or's responsiblities for the audit of the financial
statementa section of aur report. We are Indepandent of the company in accordance with the sthical raquirements that
@re relevant to our audtt of the finandial statsments In tha UK, Including the FRC's Ethical Standand, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibliities in accordance with these requirements. We befleve that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is suMclent and appropriate to provide e basis for qur opinion.

Conclusions releting to going concem
We have nothing o report in respect of the following mattera in retation to which the ISAs (UK]) require us to raport o you
whara:
® tha directors’ use of the going concem basls of accounting In the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriats; or
® the directors have not disclosed in the finarcial statoments any identified material unoertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's or the parent company’s abiity to continue to adopt the going cancern besie of
accounting for a pariod of at Isast twelve menthe from the dats when the financlal statements are cuthorised for

lssue,

Other Infformation
The directors are responsible for the other Information. The other informetion comprisas the information included In the

ennual repart, ather than the financial statements and our auditor’s report theraon. Our opinlon on the financlal
stalemants coes not cover the other Information and, except to the extent octherwise expliclity stated In our report, we do
hot express any form of assurance conclusion theraon,

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our reaponslbiilty ls to read the cther Information and, in dolng so,
censlder whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financlal staisments or our knowledpe obtained
In the audit or otherwisg appears o be materlally misstatsd. If we Identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether thers s 2 matarial misstatement in the financlal
statements or @ material migstatsment of the other information. If, based on the work we hava performed, we conclude
that there 4 & material mlamhgmem of thig other Information, we are required to report that fact.

We hava nothing to report In thia regand,

P.356




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2008
In our opinlon, based on the work undertaken In the course of our audit:
* the Information given In the strataglc report and the directors’ repart for the finandial year for which the financlal
statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and
* the strategio report and the dirsctors' reporl hava been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we ara requirsd to raport by exception
In the light of the knowledge and undarstanding of the group and the parent company and its environmant obtalned in the
course of the eud't, we have not identiflad materlal missistements in the atrateglc report and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respsct of the following matters where the Compenles Act 2006 requires us to report ko you
if, in our ophnion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retumns adequate for our audit have
not besn recelved from branches not visitad by us; or

® the parent company financial statsments ars not In agreament with the accaunting records and retums; or

® cerisin disclosures of direciars’ remuneration specified by law are nat mads; or

® we have not recelved all the Information and explanations we require for cur audit.

Responsiblilties of dirsctors

As explained mors fully In the directors' responslbfiities statement, the dineciors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satlsfied hat they give a trus and fair view, and for such Intemal control as the
diractors detsrmine Is nacessary Lo enable the preparation of financlal statements that are free from materia)
misstatamant, whether due to fraud or error.

in praparing the financial statements, the directors ars responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
2blity to continue as a golng concam, disclusing, as applicable, matters related to going eorcemn and using the going
cancern basis of acoounting unless the dirsclors either intsnd to liquidate the group or the parent company or to coase
operations, or have no reslistic sitemativa bt to do so.

Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonsble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are fres from
matarial misstatement, whether dus fo fraud or arror, and to lssue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance iz a high level of aesurancs, but I8 not a guarantea that an audk conductsd In accordance with
18As (UK) wilt always dstect a malerlal misstatement when it exista. Misatatements can arise from fraud or emror and are
congiderad matedal If, Individually or In the aggregate, they oould roasonably be expected o Influgnce the economic
decizgions of usara taken on the basia of these financial stalemonts.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents [s located on the Financial Reporting
Councli's wabsite at: http:/wrwrw.frc.org.ukfaudtoraresponsibllities. This description forms part of our auditor's report




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

Use of our raport

This report ie made solely to the company's members, ag a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compenles Act 2008, Our 2udit work has been Lmdartaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
malters we are required io state in them i an audttor's repart and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permiiiad by
law, we do not accept or assume rasponsibiity to anyone other than the company and the company’s members ag a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Michas! Breame {Senlor Statutory Auditor)

for and on bshaif of Rlckard Luckin Limited 19 July 2019
Chartersd Accountants
Statutory Auditor Aquila Houge
Waterloo Lane
Chelmsford
Essex

CM1 1BN




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Tumnover
Cost of seies

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Other opareting incoma

Opsrating (loss)iprofit

Interast receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar expenses
Falr vaiue loss an investment proparty
(Loss)iprofit befors taxation
Taxation

{Loss)profit for the financial yoar

The profit and loss account has besn prepared on tha basls that &ll operations are continuing operations.

Notes

10

2018
£

10,305,592
(8,305,679)

3,999,913

(4,662,653)
432,264

(230,478)

27825
(303,898)

(508,747)

177,664

{329,053)
e ——— |

2018
£

9,840,166

{4.490,836)

5,341,360

(3,875,571)
453478

1,919,267

31,059
(252,054)
(188,4286)

1,628,788

(381,511)

1,148,275
e




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

2019
£
(Loss}iprofit for the iead (320,063)
Other comprehensive incoms
Revaluation of tangible fixed agsets 1,514,157
Tax refating to other comprehensiva Income (208,908)
Other comprehensive Income for the year 1,305,159
———
Total comprehensive Income for the year 876,106

Total comprehensive Income for the vear Is afl attributabis to the owners of tha parent company.

2018

1,148,275

178,414

176414

P.360




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
2018 2018
Notes 4 £ £ £
Fixed assets
Goodwil 12 439,260 568,342
Tanglble asssts 12 33,730,933 33,849,571
Investment properties 14 11,353,189 11,370,000
45,523,382 45,888,013
Current aasats
Stocks 18 2,050,938 §17.408
Debtora 19 1,118,402 1,348,820
Cash at bank and in hand 212,713 2,717,458
6,120,051 4,581,767
Craditors: amounts falling dus withinone 20
year (4.619,031) {4,554,381)
Net current assets 1,601,020 27,388
Total aseeis loss curront fabllities 47,024,402 45,916,208
Creditors: amounts falling due after more 2
than one year {9,800,000} (6,700,000)
Provisions for fiabllities 23 {1,248,088) (1,084,070)
Not asgols 35,978,334 35,132,228
Capital end reserves
Called up share caplhtal 25 2,085 2,095
Share premium account 805,839 805,839
Other resarvas 26 20,071,385 18,852,611
Moftor ferry replacemant reserve 26 2,565,735 2,491,001
Profit and loss reserves 28 12,388,772 12,838,085
Discount on acquisition 144,528 144,528
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company
35,978,334 35,132,229
L - — — — ]

The financial statements were pproved by the board of diractors and authorised for issue on 18 July 2019 and are

signed on ite bahalf by:

MPR Kean




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
2019 2018
Notes £ £ £ £
Fixed assots
Tangibla egseta 13 - 2
Investments 15 518,740 518,740
518,740 518,742
Current assets
Debtore 19 20,056,008 20,084,445
Cash at bank and in hand 238 170
20,057,234 20,064,816
Creditors: ameunts falling due withinone 20
year (421,947) {238,503)
Net currant assets 19,635,287 15,826,113
Total assets lass currant llabillties 20,154,027 20,344,855
L — ] e
Capltal and roserves
Called up share capital 25 2,085 2,005
Share premium account 805,839 805,839
Profit and loss reserves 19,348,083 18,538,921
Total equity 20,154,027 20,344,855
———— ]

The finanolal statements ware approved by the board of ditectors and authorised for Issus on 18 July 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

MPR Ksan
Director

Company Registration No. 03021137

-10-




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Balance at 1 April 2017

Perlod ended 31 March 2018:

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Tax relating to other comprehensive income

Total comprehersive income for the yaar
Dividends

Transfara

Transfer historic revaluation reserve

Bafance at 31 March 2018

Perlod ended 31 March 2019;
Loes for the year
On_n_.oaae.o:n:ncmmgam”
grﬁ:oa&.m:u!m?&uw«oﬁ
._.mx_!ﬂ..a. agﬂgsgg

Total comprehensive income for the ysar
Dividends
Transfers

Balance at 31 March 2019

11

"

Shara capital Share
premium
account

2,095 805,839

Other Discounton Motor oty  Profit and Tolal
reserves acquigition replacementioss resorves

18,842,015

Teserve
E g

144528 1,931,434

£ £

12,097,829 33,823,740

- 1148275 1,148275

178414 178414
178414 - 1148275 1,326,689
- - (18,200) (18.200)
- (154.244) 559657  (405413) -
{13.574) - 13,574
2,095 805,839 18,852,611 144528 2491091 12,836,085 35,132,229
(329,053}  (329,053)
- 1,514,157 - 1,514,157
(208,998) (208.998)
- -~ 1,305,159 (329,053) 976,106
3 . (130.000)  (130.000
- (88,405) 74,644 1,761 .

20,071,365

ﬂlll""ﬂ"“|

144528  2,565735

12,388,772 35,970,334

—

_——
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Share cephtai Share  Profitand Total
premiumloss resarves
account
Notas £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 Aprii 2017 2,085 805839 19,052,752 19,860,686
Year ended 31 March 2016:
Proflt and toisi comprehansiva income for the vear - . 502,369 502,389
Dividends " - - {18,200) (18,200}
Balance at 31 March 2018 2,085 B05,830 19,536,021 20,344,855
Year snded 31 March 2010:
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year - - {80,828) (80,828)
Dividends " - - (130,000)  {130,000)
Balance st 31 March 2019 2,095 805,830 19,346,003 20,154,027
_——r——— _— ———

-12.
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Caah flowas from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Intarest paid

Incoma taxes paid

Net cash Infiow from operating activitiss
Investing activities

Purchase of intanglble assets

Purchase of tangible fixed asssts
Purchase of Investment property

Interest received

Nat cash used in Investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease In cash and cagh equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cosh and cash equivalents at end of year
Relating to:

Cach at bank and in hend

Bank overdrefts included in creditors payahla
within ane year

Notes

3

2019

(343,883)
{58.189)
27,825

(130,000)

—

507,715
{303,896)
(188,243)

16,636

(374,447)

{120,000)

(488,811)

565,121

78,310

2,812,713

(2,836,403)
. —

2018

(300,000)
{4.127,809)
(1,200,486)

31,058

(18,200)

2,517,569
(252,054)
(268,887)

1,606,848

(5,307.236)

(18,200)

(3,618,788)

4,183,908

565,121
—

2,717,438

(2,152,218)
————

-13-




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1.1

12

1.3

Accounting policles

Company information
Fairacres Group Limited (‘the company”) ls & privets limited company domiclled end incorparated in England and
Wales. The ragistered offica Is Falracres, Stock Lane, Ingatastone, Essax, CM4 9QL

The group consiats of Falracres Group Limited and all of its subaldiaries.

Accounting convention
Theses financial statements have bean prepared In accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 1027) and the requirements of the Companlas Act 2008,

The financial statements are prepared In steriing, which is the functional currancy of the company. Monetary a
mounts in these financlal statements are rounded to the nearest £,

The financlel siatemants have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the
revalustion of freshold properties and to Include investment properties and certsin financial inetruments at fair

valua. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

As permiltted by s408 Companles Act 2008, the Company hee not presented Its own profit and loss account and
related notes. The company’s loss after taxation for tha year was £60,826 (2018; profit of £502,389),

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financlal statementa incorporate thoas of Falracres Group Limited and alf of Its subsidiariss le.

antities that ths Group controls through its power lo govem the financlal and operating policias so as to obtaln

All infra-group transactions, balances and unrealised geins on transactions betwsen group comnpanies are
efiminated on consolidation, Unrealfsed losses are also eiiminated unless the transaction provides avidsnce ofan
impaiment of tha assst {ransfarred.

Where necessary, adjuatments are Made fo the Inancial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policles
used Into line with those used by other members of the Group.

The cost of a busineas combination Is the fair vaiue at the acquisition date of the esgets given, equily instruments
tasued and ilablites incurred or assumed, plus costs directly attribytable to the business combination. The excess
of the cost of a buainess combination over the falr value of tha identifiable assats, lfabliitles and contingent ilabllitles

acquired is recognised as goodwill,

The oost of the combination Includes tha sstimatad amount of contingent congidaration that is probabis and can be
measured refiably, and s atjusted for changes in contingent considerstion after the acquisition dats,

Gelng conecamn
At the time of approving the finencial statements, the directors have a reascnabla expactation that the company
has adequate resowrcas to continue In operstional existence for the foreseasble fiture. Thus the directors continue

fo adopt the golng concam basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements,

- {4«




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

14

15

1.6

1.7

18

Accounting poficias {Continued)

Turnover
Credit Is taken for rents on a dally basie, Any amounts of rent received In advance are camied forward.

Cradit Is taken for the toll Incoms on a dally basls. Any amount recaived In advence ls canted forward,
Hote! tumover repressnts smounts recaivable for goods and services net of VAT and frade discounts.

intangible fixed assets - poodwiil
Acquired goodwill is written off In equal annual instalments over it eslimated useful economic Iife which tha

directors believe to be 10 ysars.

Tangible fixad asseta
Tanghie fixed assats are inltielly maasured at cost and aubsequently measurad &t cost or valuation, net of

depraciation and any impakment [osges.

Fixed assets are stated at cost or Professional valuation, less depreciation. Depreciation is caleulated to wiite off
fixed assets over thelr estimated useful ilves at the followling annusi rates:

Freshold land and bulldings N

Motor farry 40 years straight lIne basls

Fixtures, fitings and equipmant 5 - 10 years straight iine basis

Plant, machinery and motor vehicles 20-25% recucing balance basle and 20% stralght line baals

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset Is determined as the difference batweer the aale procesds and
the camrying value of the asast, and Is recognised in the profit and loss account.

The group hes adopted the transitiongl wrangemants included within FRS102 and have chogen to "freeze” the
valuation of certain land and bulldinge and the Motor Ferry a3 at ihe dete of transition; 31st March 2014, No
subsequent vaiuations are therefore Inciuded and the valuation at that date becomes the “deamad cosf".

Investment propertias
Invesment property, whict s property held to eam rentafs endfor for capltal appreciation, Is measured using the
fair value modal and statad at its fair valus as the reporting end date. The surplus or deflcit on revalugtion is

recognised In the profit and loss account.

Fixed assst Investments
A subsidiary Is an sniity controlfed by the group. Confrol Is the power to govem the financial and oparating policles
of the entity 8o es to oblain benefits from ie acihviies. Subsidiaries are carrad in the company’s balanca shaet at

enxt lass pravision for impalment.

=15-
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

1 Accounting polficles {Continued)

1.9  impaimment of fixed assets

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method Is tested for Impafrment as & single
asset Any goodwill included In the carrying amount of the invastment s not tested separately for Impafiment,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intanglble asssts not yel availabis for use are tested for impairment
annuatly, and whenever thare fe an Indication thet the gsset may be irpaired.

Recoverabla amount Is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In aseessing valug in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that refiscts current
market assessments of the fime value of fonsy and the risks specific i the asset for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not besn adjuated.

if the recoverabis amount of an asset (or oash-generating unit) Is estimated to be less than fs carrying amount, the
carrying arnount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) s reduced to its recovarabie amount. An Impalmetit loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loes, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, In which case
the Impairment lose e treateg @8 a revaluation decrease,

110 Stocks
Stocks are atated at the lower of cost and estimatad seliing price lasa costs to complete and sell.

Slocks held for distribution at ng or nominal conslderation are measured at cost, adjusted where applicablg for any
loss of servics potential,

Stocks held for the purpose of the ferry re-fit are stated at cost and are not held for sale.

Properties held in stock for development have bean transfemred from Investment properties at fair vaiue at tha date
of transfer which now represents desmed coet. Subsequent developmant costs are carried at cosat

Al wach reporting date, an Bawueyment ls mude for Impulrment, Any exceuss of the currylng amnount of stocks over
its estimated salling price less costs in complets and sel Is recognised as an Impalment loss in profit or ioss.
Reversals of Impairment loases &re also recognisad In profit or loss.

111 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand are basic financial asssts and include cash in hand, deposits held at caii with banks,
other short-term liquid investments with criginal maturities of thres months orless, and bank overdrafis, Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilltes,

-18-




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST, ATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting policles {Continued)

Financia! Instruments
The group has elaciad to apply the provislons of Section 11 'Basle Financlel nstruments’ and Saction 12 ‘Other

Financlal Instruments lssues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial Instrumenis.

Financie] instrumants are recognieed in the group's balance shest when the group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the Inatrument.

Finenclal assets and llabfitles are offset and the net @mounis presented in the financlal statsmants when there is a
legally enforcaable right to set off the recognised amounts and there Is an imention to settfe on a nst basls or ko
realise the asset and sattls the Itability simultanecusly.

Basic financia) asgets

unlees the emangement conetitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction s measurad at the present value
of the futura receipts discountsd at a market rate of interest. Flnanciai Bssate clasalfied as recelvabla within one
year are not amortised,

Other financial asseis
Cther financlal assets, inclvding invesimaents in equity instruments which are not subsidlaries, associates or Joint

ventures, are Initially measured at falr value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are subsequanty
carrled at fai value and the changes In falr valus ane recognlsad in profit or logs, except thal investments in equity
instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured rellably are measurad at cost

Iess impairment.

Impairment of finencis! assets
Financlal assets, other than those hetd &t fair value through proft and loas, are assessad for indicators of

Impairment at aach reporting end date.

Financial assats ane impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more avents that
ococurred afler the initfal recognition of the Anangial sset, the estimated future cash flows have been affacted. Ifan
ssetis Impalred, the Impaiment loss Is the differance betwesn the camying amount and the present velus of the
estimated cash flows discountad &t the asset's original effective Interest rate. The Impairment loss Is recognised In
profit or loss.

If there is & decrease in the impaliment lose arising from an event accurring after the impairment was racognised,
the impeirment ks reveraed, The reversal Is such thal the current carrying amount does not exceed what the
carrylng amount would have bean, had the Impairment not previously basn recognised. The Impairment reversal iz
recognised In profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assats
Financlel assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the agsat expire or are

Cizssification of financiel Hebilities
Financlal labilities and 8quity instruments are cisssified according to the substance of the contractual
amangements entered into. An equity Instrurment i any coritract that evidences a residusl Intarest in the assats of

the group aftar deducting all of its llablities.

-17




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

113

114

Accounting policies (Continued)

Basic finencial liabilities, incuding craditors, bank loans, loans from feliuw group companies and preferance shares
that are classified ag debt, are inttially recognised at transaction price unless the arangament conetitutes g

financing transaction, whera the debt instrument Is measured at the prasent value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interaat. Financlal Nabfities classified &s payable wihin one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subasquently carmied at amortised cost, using the effective intereat rate metheod.

Derecognition of financial Habliitles
Financlsl llabliities ane derecognised when the group'’s confractual obligations expire or are dlscharged or

cancelled.

Equity Instruments
Equity Instruments lssued by the group are recorded at the praceeds racelved, net of ransaotion costs, Dividends
Peyable on equlty Instruments are recagnised as llabllittes ance they ars ro ionger ai the discration of the group.

Taxatlon
The tax expense repregents tha sum of e tax currently payable and deferred tax.

-18-




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

118

116

1197

Accounting policies {Continued)

Dwlerred tax

Doferred tax kebilities are generally recognised for all Yming differances and defarmed tax assets are recognised to
the extent thet it s probabla that they will be recovared against the reversal of deferred tax labilities or other future
taxable profits. Such asgets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from
the Inltial recognition of other #@sgels and llabllities in a transaction that affacts nelther the tax profit nor the

accounting profi.

asset i reallsed. Deferred tax (s charged or credited in the profit and loss account, axcept when it relates fo itams
charged or credited directly to squity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with In equity. Deforred tax agsats
and liablliiss are offset if, and only if, there Is a legally enforceabla right to offset curment tax assets and liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and llabillfes relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Employse banefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised es a labiltty and an expenas, uniess those costs are
raquirad i he recognisad ps part of the cost of siock or fixed aasets.

The cost of any unused hofiday entitement ia recognised In the perlod In which the employes's services are
received.

Tertnination benefits are recognised Immediately as an expanse when the company Is demonstrably committed to
terminats the employmant of an empioyee or to provide tarmination benefits,

Retirement bensfita
The Boumemouth-Swanags Motor Road and Feiry Go Inc and Raview Hotels Limited operats dafined contribution
achemes for the beneft of thejr employaes. Contibutions payable ere charged fo the profit end loss account In the

yoar they are payabls,
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT INUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

4  Judgements and key sources of eatimation uncartainty

The esiimatss and underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basfa. Revislons to accounting eatimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimats Is revised where the revision affacts only that period, or In the
Period of the revialon and future perlods where the revision affacts both current and future periods.

3 Turnover and other reveriue

An analysls of the group's tumover s as follows:

2019 2018
£ £

Turnaver
Property rentel 682,522 623,735
Tolls 2,508,443 3,130,882
Hotel - services 4,413,713 3,768,552
Hatel - goods 2,800,914 2.417,047

10,305,592 6,840,106
—_— =

4  Operating {losayprofit

2019 208
£ £

Operating (loas)profit for the year is stated after charging:
Depraclation of owned tangibla fixad assets 526,678 691,400
Amartisation of Intangible sssets 130,082 105,429
Cost of stocks recognised as an expense 1,838,648 1,309,412

The amortisation of Intangible assats ks included within adminlstration expenses.

] Audilor's remuneration

2019 2018
Fess payable fo the company's euditor and associstes: £ £
For audit services
Audit of the financial stataments of the group and company 14,450 14,585
Audit of the financiel statements of the conpany’s
subsidiaries 33,310 26,990
47,760 44,575
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FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

(] Intsrest racelvable and simliar Income

Intarest income
Interest on bank depoeils
Other intarest Income

Total Income

Invesiment income includes the following:

Interast on financial assets nat measured at fair value through profit or loas

7 Employees

was

Operations
Administration

Thelr aggregate remuneration gomprised;

Wages and salarles
Social sacurity costs
Pension costs

L] Directors’ remuneration

Reimuneration for qualifying senvices

Group
2019
Number

237

Group
2019
£

4,321,357
253,321
47,879

4,622,557

2018 2018

£ £

7,228 30,916
20,397 143
27,625 31,059

— —_——
7.228 30,918
——— ——

The average monthly number of parsons (including directors) emplayed by the group and company during the year

Company
2018 2019 2018
Number Number Number
208 3 3
30 7 7
234 10 10
e L — ] =—==

Company

2018 2019 2018
£ £ £
3,781,772 423,109 566,030
235817 48,819 69,014
52,089 - -
4,089,778 472,728 835,044
2019 2018
£ £
312,666 437,788

=21 -




FAIRACRES GROUP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

8 Directors' remuneration

Remuneration disciosed abovs includes the lollowing amounts paid 1o the highes! pald director-

Remuneration for qualfying services

9 Interest payable and similar expensas

Interast on Ainanclal ltablftles measured at amortised cost;

Interest on bank ovardrafts and loans
Other finance costs:
Other interest

Total financs costs

10 Taxsilon

Current tax

UK corporation tax on profits for the current pericd
Adjustments In respact of prior perfods

Total current tax

Deferrod tax

Originetion and revergal of timing differences

Total fax (credit}fcharge

(Continued)

132,000 183,000
—_—— ==
2019 2018

£ £
283,492 252,038
20,404 18
303,596 252,054
_ ——— ]
2019 2018

£ £

17477 381,385
{147,871) (30,844)
(130,884) 350,511
e — ] L — ]
{47,000) 31,000
{177.894) 381,511
=== ===
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